
 

 
 
 
 
 

Board Meeting Agenda 
 
 
 

Russ Baggerly, Director 
Mary Bergen, Director 
Bill Hicks, Director 

Pete Kaiser, Director 
James Word, Director 

 
CASITAS MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT 

March 11, 2015 
3:00 P.M.  

1055 Ventura Avenue 
Oak View, CA 93022 

 
Right to be heard:  Members of the public have a right to address the Board directly on any 
item of interest to the public which is within the subject matter jurisdiction of the Board.  The 
request to be heard should be made immediately before the Board's consideration of the item. 
No action shall be taken on any item not appearing on the agenda unless the action is 
otherwise authorized by subdivision (b) of  ¶54954.2 of the Government Code and except that 
members of a legislative body or its staff may briefly respond to statements made or questions 
posed by persons exercising their public testimony rights under section 54954.3 of the 
Government Code. 

 
1. Public Comments (items not on the agenda – three minute limit). 
     
2. General Manager comments.   
 
3. Board of Director comments. 
 
4. Board of Director Verbal Reports on Meetings Attended. 

 
5. Consent Agenda 
 
 a. Minutes of February 25, 2015 Meeting. 
  
  RECOMMENDED ACTION: Adopt Consent Agenda 
 
6. Bills 
 
7. Public Hearing regarding the proposed Ordinance to Increase the 

Compensation of the Board of Directors from $171.06 to $179.61 per 
meeting. 

 
  RECOMMENDED ACTION: Adopt Ordinance 
 
 
 
 1 



8. Resolution awarding a contract to Advanced Industrial Services, Inc. in the 
amount of $295,000 for 3M Reservoir Coating, Specification 14-374. 

 
  RECOMMENDED ACTION: Adopt Resolution 
 
9. Recommend approval of a Memorandum of Understanding for funding 

participation in the formation of a Groundwater Sustainability Agency for 
the Upper Ventura River sub-basin. 

 
  RECOMMENDED ACTION: Motion approving recommendation 
 
10. Resolution concurring the nomination of Jerry Gladbach to the Executive 

Committee of the Association of California Water Agencies Joint Powers 
insurance Authority. 

 
  RECOMMENDED ACTION: Adopt Resolution  
 
11. Discussion regarding the State Water Multi Year Pool. 
 
12. Information Items: 
 

a. Water Resources Committee Minutes. 
b. Executive Committee Minutes. 
c. CSDA Call for Nominations for Board of Directors. 
d. Water Consumption Report. 
e. CFD No. 2013-1 (Ojai) Monthly Cost Analysis. 
f. Investment Report. 

 
13. Closed Session 
 

a. Conference with Legal Counsel -- Existing Litigation (Subdivision (a) of 
Section 54956.9, Government Code).  Name of Case:  Golden State 
Water Company v. Casitas Municipal Water District.  Case Number: 
56-2013-00433986-CU-WM-VTA. 

 
14. Adjournment  
 

If you require special accommodations for attendance at or participation in this meeting, 
please notify our office 24 hours in advance at (805) 649-2251, ext.  113.  (Govt. Code 
Section 54954.1 and 54954.2(a). 

 2 



Minutes of the Casitas Municipal Water District 
Board Meeting Held 
February 25, 2015 

 
 A meeting of the Board of Directors was held February 25, 2015 at the District 
office in Oak View, California. The meeting was called to order at 3:00 p.m. 
Directors Bergen, Kaiser, Baggerly, Word and Hicks were present.  Also present 
were Steve Wickstrum, General Manager, Rebekah Vieira, Clerk of the Board, 
and Attorney, John Mathews.  There were four staff members and one member 
of the public in attendance.  President Bergen led the group in the flag salute. 

 
1. Public Comments (items not on the agenda – three minute limit). 
 

None 
     

2. General Manager comments.   
 

Mr. Wickstrum reported that the HVAC job should be completed by the 
end of the next week.  The Contractor has been doing a great job.   The work at 
Recreation is going well, they are starting to pour the kiosk slabs and asphalt will 
be laid next week.  Then we will be waiting for delivery of the kiosks and roof.  
Staff have done a god job keeping business as normal as possible for our 
customers. 
 
 Mr. Mathews asked that item number 8 be removed from the agenda. 
Director Hicks added that he would be gone at the next meeting and Mr. 
Mathews stated it could be put on the second meeting in March. 
 
3. Board of Director comments. 
 

Director Baggerly commented that the front yard looks terrific.  Mr. 
Wickstrum added that Cinnamon McIntosh and staff have done a wonderful job. 

  
George Galgas of Oak View commented that it is a good thing item 

number 8 was pulled.  Review and consideration of part time employment of 
relatives of board members shows impropriety.  It is a question of nepotism and 
conflict of interest.  You people sat there along with me in training and should 
know better.  Relatives have approval of what goes on here. The GM has 
authority to hire and fire and we the board have the authority to approve this.  It is 
strange that this is being entertained. 
 

Director Baggerly added that he read something that in Oregon they are 
putting generators in water wells to develop electricity.  Director Hicks added they 
had a session on this at ACWA.   
 
4. Board of Director Verbal Reports on Meetings Attended. 
 

Director Hicks attended an AWA meeting in Thousand Oaks.  Jay 
Spurgeon gave a nice presentation and discussed more interest in looking at the 
cost of desal since state water is getting so expensive.    
 1 



 
Director Baggerly reported his attendance at the OBGMA GSA committee 

meeting.  They are continuing to gather information to work on the draft 
groundwater sustainability plan.  There will be a presentation to the OBGMA 
board tomorrow night.   
 

Director Word asked about Director Baggerly’s request a few meetings 
ago on attending a session in Sacramento.  Director Baggerly replied that he is 
unable to attend but sent our comments.  Tully Clifford let me know today that the 
Watershed Protection District is looking at making comments. 
 

Director Word then asked if we have heard from Brian Holley yet.  Mr. 
Wickstrum replied no. 
 
5. Consent Agenda       ADOPTED 
 
 a. Minutes of February 11, 2015 Meeting. 
  
 On the motion of Director Kaiser, seconded by Director Word, the Consent 
Agenda was adopted by the following roll call vote: 
 

AYES: Directors: Hicks, Word, Baggerly, Kaiser, Bergen 
  NOES: Directors: None 
  ABSENT: Directors: None 
 
6. Bills         APPROVED 
 

Director Hicks mentioned he was taken aback that we have to do an EIR 
on the aeration system.  Mr. Wickstrum explained those are fees to the County 
for filing the Mitigated Negative Declaration, it is not a full blown EIR. 
 
 Director Kaiser questioned the purchase from Home Depot for faucets in 
the Recreation area and asked if we could get a grant reimbursement for them 
through conservation.  Mr. Wickstrum explained we don’t have a grant for the 
faucets. 
 

  On the motion of Director Kaiser, seconded by Director Hicks, the bills 
were approved by the following roll call vote: 
 

AYES: Directors: Hicks, Word, Baggerly, Kaiser, Bergen 
  NOES: Directors: None 
  ABSENT: Directors: None 
 
7. Recommend approval of the Casitas Water Adventure End of Season 

Report.        APPROVED 
   

Park Services Officer Aaron Wall presented the Casitas Water Adventure 
End of Season report stating he has been with the district nine years this summer 
and it has been a pleasure to grow in the district.  We had a great group of kids 
this past season and it was another fun year. 

 2 



 
The board liked the report with President Bergen saying it was clear and 

that she liked the graphics and the results.  Director Baggerly thanked him for 
make the requested changes.  Director Kaiser added it is easy to read, has good 
photos and is well done.  
 

Director Kaiser added it is important to recognize how many seasonal 
youth we hire.  Mr. Wall explained that on average we hire around 80 people for 
the waterpark each year. 
 

Mr. Wall continued to point out that they made a big push to conserve 
water in the waterpark.  They eliminated over 50 irrigation heads this year.  He 
pointed out that it is an aging facility.  This year we have some pumps out that 
will be repaired. Director Baggerly commented that the aging waterpark is 
pertinent.  We as the board need to think about and encourage park staff to 
come forward with future improvements to keep it young at heart. 
 
 On the motion of Director Word, seconded by Director Kaiser, the above 
recommendation was approved by the following roll call vote: 
 

AYES: Directors: Hicks, Word, Baggerly, Kaiser, Bergen 
  NOES: Directors: None 
  ABSENT: Directors: None 
 
8. Review and consideration of approval of part-time employment for 

relatives of current employees.   Item Pulled From Agenda  
 
 At the recommendation of Mr. Mathews, this item was pulled from the 
agenda.  George Galgas asked why it was pulled with Mr. Mathews explaining 
that he wanted to review the item more closely.  Mr. Galgas asked if the item 
would be on an upcoming agenda and Mr. Mathews answered that it will come 
back and be reviewed.  
 
9. Recommendation to set the Reserves of the district.  APPROVED 
 
 On the motion of Director Baggerly, seconded by Director Word, the 
above recommendation was approved by the following roll call vote: 
 

AYES: Directors: Hicks, Word, Baggerly, Kaiser, Bergen 
  NOES: Directors: None 
  ABSENT: Directors: None 
 
10. Resolution amending the Conflict of Interest Code.  ADOPTED 
 
 The resolution was offered by Director Baggerly, seconded by Director 
Word and passed by the following roll call vote: 
 

AYES: Directors: Hicks, Word, Baggerly, Kaiser, Bergen 
  NOES: Directors: None 
  ABSENT: Directors: None 
 3 



 
  Resolution is numbered 15-03 
 
11. Resolution Amending Resolution 13-37 and establishing the Policy 

Implementing Safe Harbors under the Patient Protection and Affordable 
Care Unit.        ADOPTED 

 
  The resolution was offered by Director Baggerly, seconded by Director 

Kaiser and adopted by the following roll call vote: 
 

AYES: Directors: Hicks, Word, Baggerly, Kaiser, Bergen 
  NOES: Directors: None 
  ABSENT: Directors: None 
 
  Resolution is numbered 15-04 
 
12. Resolution awarding a contract to Manito Construction, Inc. in the amount 

of $1,234,000.00 to construct a Hypolimnetic Aeration System, 
Specification 15-376.      ADOPTED 

 
 The resolution was offered by Director Word, seconded by Director Kaiser, 
and adopted by the following roll call vote: 

 
AYES: Directors: Hicks, Word, Baggerly, Kaiser, Bergen 

  NOES: Directors: None 
  ABSENT: Directors: None 
 
  Resolution is numbered 15-05 
  
13. Information Items:     APPROVED FOR FILING 
 

a. Finance Committee Minutes. 
b. Personnel Committee Minutes. 
c. Investment Report. 

 
On the motion of Director Baggerly, seconded by Director Word, the 

Information items were approved for filing by the following roll call vote: 
 

AYES: Directors: Hicks, Word, Baggerly, Kaiser, Bergen 
  NOES: Directors: None 
  ABSENT: Directors: None 
 

President Bergen moved the meeting to closed session at 3:22 p.m.  
 
14. Closed Session 
 

a. Conference with Legal Counsel -- Anticipated Litigation  
Significant exposure to litigation pursuant to subdivision (b) of Section 
54956.9, Government Code. (number of potential cases: one)  

 
 4 



President Bergen moved the meeting backed into open session at 4:33 
p.m. with Mr. Mathews stating general counsel discussed a potential litigation 
and explained options.  No action was taken. 
 
15. Adjournment  
 

President Bergen adjourned the meeting at 4:34 p.m. 
 
 
 
       _________________________ 
       Russ Baggerly, Secretary 

 5 



































CASITAS MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT 
INTEROFFICE MEMORANDUM 

TO:  Board of Directors 

FROM: Rebekah Vieira, Assistant to General Manager/Clerk of the Board  

SUBJECT: Public Hearing and Ordinance to Increase Board of Directors 
Compensation 

DATE: October 14, 2014 
 

RECOMMENDATION: 
 
It is recommended that the Board of Directors conduct a public hearing to hear input 
from the public and adopt an ordinance authorizing the increase in Directors 
compensation from $171.06 per hour to $179.61 per hour pursuant to Water Code 
Section 20200 et. seq. 
 
BACKGROUND AND DISCUSSION: 
 
As discussed last month, the boards’ compensation has remained at $171.06 per 
meeting since February 12, 2001. The Board discussed a 5% increase which if adopted 
by ordinance would become effective 60 days from the date of adoption which is May 
10, 2015. 
 
If you have any question in this regard, please ask me. 



CASITAS MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT 
 

ORDINANCE 15-01 
 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CASITAS MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT INCREASING 
COMPENSATION AUTHORIZED TO BE PAID TO THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

PURSUANT TO WATER CODE SECTION 20200, ET. SEQ. 
 

 WHEREAS, pursuant to Casitas Municipal Water District Ordinance No. 00-5, 
passed on December 13, 2000, the Board of Directors of the Casitas Municipal Water 
District are currently paid $171.06 per day for occurrences constituting District business, 
official duties or each day’s service rendered as a Director by request of the Board, not 
to exceed ten (10) days for any one calendar month; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Directors of the Casitas Municipal Water District come within the 
provisions of California Water Code Section 20201 et. seq. authorizing compensation in 
excess of One Hundred Dollars ($100.00) per day; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the last increase to the Directors fees from $162.91 to $171.06 per 
day was effective February 12, 2001; and 
 
 WHEREAS, California Water Code Section 20202 et seq. permits the increase of 
the Directors current fee by an annual amount equal to up to 5% for every year since 
the last effective increase; and 
 
 WHEREAS, it is proposed that by adoption of this Ordinance No. 15-01, the 
Board shall increase the per diem fee paid to District Directors 5% to $179.61. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, the Board of Directors of the Casitas Municipal Water 
District ordains as follows: 
 

That each Director of this District shall receive compensation in an amount not to 
exceed one Hundred Seventy Nine dollars at sixty-one cents ($179.61) per day for each 
day’s attendance at meetings of the Board or for each day’s service rendered as a 
Director by the request of the Board, for a maximum of ten days in any calendar month. 
 

This ordinance shall become effective sixty (60) days after its adoption but no 
earlier than May 10, 2015. 

 
ADOPTED this 11th day of March 2015. 
 
 
      ________________________  
      Mary Bergen, President 
      Casitas Municipal Water District 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
___________________________ 
Russ Baggerly, Secretary 
Casitas Municipal Water District 



CASITAS MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT 
INTEROFFICE MEMORANDUM 

TO:  STEVE WICKSTRUM, GENERAL MANAGER 

FROM:  NEIL COLE, PRINCIPAL CIVIL ENGINEER 

SUBJECT: ADOPT RESOLUTION TO AWARD CONTRACT-3M RESERVOIR COATING, SPECIFICATION 14-374 

DATE:  MARCH 3, 2015 

 

RECOMMENDATION: 
 
It is recommended that the Board of Directors: 
 
1.  Find that the 3M Reservoir Coating, Specification 14-374 (“Project”) is categorically exempt from  the 
California Environment Quality Act. 
 
2. Find the bid submitted by Advanced Industrial Services, Inc. (“AIS”) was responsive because the 
failure of AIS to return a signed Addendum #1 with its bid is an inconsequential irregularity that did not allow 
AIS to withdraw its bid without forfeiting its bid bond or excuse AIS from performing the work in compliance 
with Addendum #1 and other bid documents.  
 
3.  Find that AIS is the lowest responsible and responsive bidder and adopt the resolution awarding the 
contract for the construction of the Project to AIS in the amount of $295,000.   
 
4. It is further recommended that the President of the Board execute the agreement for the Project, and 
the Board authorize staff to proceed with the administration of the contract. 
 
BACKGROUND AND DISCUSSION: 
 
The 3M Reservoir was built in 1960 and the interior has not been recoated since. The Reservoir is in need 
of interior and exterior coating and minor structural repairs.  This project will repair any damaged structure, 
provide for a new outlet to the reservoir, provide a new interior ladder, improve seismic capacity and coat 
the interior and exterior of the tank. 
 
The project was advertised through F.W. Dodge and on the District’s web site. Five bidders completed the 
non mandatory job walk. Seven firms submitted proposals.  The proposal results are 
 
FIRM AMOUNT 
Advanced Industrial Services Inc. $295,000 
Olympus & Associates $299,210 
State Painting $309,400 
Utility Service Company $312,100 
Farr Construction Corp. $325,274 
Paso Robles Tank Inc $341,270 
Blastco $383,840 
 
Advanced Industrial Services, Inc. (“AIS”) has successfully completed several similar projects, and its 
contractors license is current and active.  
 
AIS failed to return a signed acknowledgement of Addendum #1 with its bid.  The District Board of Directors 
may waive this failure as an inconsequential irregularity and deem AIS to be a responsive bidder because 



the failure did not allow AIS to withdraw its bid without forfeiting its bid bond or excuse AIS from performing 
the work in compliance with Addendum #1 and other bid documents.  
 
The Project is subject to review under the California Environmental Quality Act (California Public Resource 
Code Section 21000 et seq.), but is categorically exempt from the terms and conditions of the California 
Environmental Quality Act pursuant to Title 14, California Code of Regulations, Sections 15301 (Existing 
Facilities). The Project involves the maintenance and repair of an existing District water storage tank and 
does not involve any expansion of the tank’s use beyond that existing at the time of the District’s 
determination that the Project is categorically exempt.  No special circumstances exist that would create a 
reasonable possibility that the Project will have a significant adverse effect on the environment.  Therefore, 
the Project qualifies for this exemption and no further environmental review is required. 
 
The Engineer’s estimate to complete the 3M Reservoir Coating was $200,000.  The FY 2014-15 Budget 
allocated $600,000 for the completion of the Ojai East Reservoir.  The Ojai East Reservoir coating has been 
delayed because of the continuing drought.  The Ojai East Reservoir is three times larger than the 3M 
Reservoir and requires significant structural repairs. 
 



 CASITAS MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT 
 
 
 

RESOLUTION AWARDING A CONTRACT 
FOR THE OJAI 3(M) RESERVOIR COATING 

SPECIFICATION NO. 14-374 
 

WHEREAS, the Casitas Municipal Water District (“District”) invited qualified contractors to submit 
bids for the OJAI 3M RESERVOIR COATING, SPECIFICATION NO. 14-374 (“Project”); and, 

 
WHEREAS, the California Environmental Quality Act (section 21000 et seq. of the Public 

Resources Code (“CEQA”) requires that the District consider the environmental consequences of its actions 
before approving a project; and, 

 
WHEREAS, Section 15301 (Existing Facilities) of the State CEQA Guidelines (Chapter 3 of 

Division 6 of Title 14 of the California Code of Regulations) provides a categorical exemption from CEQA 
from projects involving the repair and maintenance of existing public structures, facilities, mechanical 
equipment involving negligible or no expansion of use beyond that existing at the time of the District’s 
determination that the Project is categorically exempt; and, 

 
WHEREAS, an invitation to bid on the Project was duly advertised and bids submitted by seven 

qualified bidders were opened and publicly read at the District’s main offices on March 3, 2015 at 11:00 
a.m.; and,  

 
WHEREAS, Advanced Industrial Services, Inc., (“AIS”), one of the seven bidders, failed to return 

an acknowledgement of Addendum #1 with its bid; and, 
 
WHEREAS, the failure of AIS to return an acknowledgment of Addendum #1 with its bid can be 

waived by the District’s Board of Directors as an inconsequential irregularity because the failure did not 
allow AIS to withdraw its bid without forfeiting its bid bond or excuse AIS from performing the work in 
compliance with Addendum #1 and other bid documents; and, 

 
WHEREAS, having waived the failure of AIS to return an acknowledgment of Addendum #1 with 

its bid, the Board determined AIS to be the responsible bidder submitting the lowest responsive bid.   
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Directors of the Casitas Municipal 
Water District (“Board”) as follows: 
 

1. The OJAI 3M RESERVOIR COATING, SPECIFICATION NO. 14-374 (“Project”) is subject 
to review under the California Environmental Quality Act (California Public Resource Code Section 21000 
et seq.), but is categorically exempt from the terms and conditions of the California Environmental Quality 
Act pursuant to Title 14, California Code of Regulations, Sections 15301 (Existing Facilities). Section 15301 
applies to the repair or maintenance of existing public facilities. The Project involves the maintenance and 
repair of an existing District water storage tank and does not involve any expansion of the tank’s use beyond 
that existing at the time of the District’s determination that the Project is categorically exempt.  No special 
circumstances exist that would create a reasonable possibility that the Project will have a significant adverse 
effect on the environment.  Therefore, the Project qualifies for this exemption and no further environmental 
review is required. 



 
2. The bid submitted by Advanced Industrial Services, Inc. (“AIS”) was responsive because 

the failure of AIS to return a signed Addendum #1 with its bid is an inconsequential irregularity that did 
not allow AIS to withdraw its bid without forfeiting its bid bond or excuse AIS from performing the 
work in compliance with Addendum #1 and other bid documents.  

 
3. Advanced Industrial Services, Inc., (“AIS”) is the responsible bidder submitting the 

lowest responsive bid for the Project. 
 
4. The President of the Board is authorized to execute a contract with Advanced Industrial 

Services, Inc., (“AIS”) for the Project in the amount of $295,000. 
 

5. District staff is hereby authorized and directed to proceed with the administration of the 
contract with AIS. 
 
 

ADOPTED this                   day of                                        , 2015. 
 
 

_________________________________ 
Mary Bergen, President 
Casitas Municipal Water District 

 
ATTEST: 
 
___________________________________ 
Russ Baggerly, Secretary 
Casitas Municipal Water District 



CASITAS MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT 
INTEROFFICE MEMORANDUM 

TO:  Board of Directors 

FROM: Steve Wickstrum, General Manager  

SUBJECT: Memorandum of Understanding – Funding Participation for Legal Services 
Formation of a Groundwater Sustainability Agency – Upper Ventura River Basin 

DATE:  October 14, 2014 

 

RECOMMENDATION: 
 
It is recommended that the Board of Directors authorize and direct the President of the Board 
and the General Manager to sign the Memorandum of Understanding for funding participation in 
the formation of a groundwater sustainability agency over the Upper Ventura River sub-basin. 
 
BACKGROUND AND DISCUSSION: 
 
As a result of the passage of the Groundwater Management Act in September 2014, there has 
been an interest by local water agencies and the County of Ventura to consider the formation of 
a Groundwater Sustainability Agency that would address the sustainability issues of the Upper 
Ventura River sub-basin.  In October 2014, the Board of Directors assigned staff and Directors 
Bergen and Kaiser to represent Casitas in discussions regarding the formation of the agency.   
 
The consensus reached during the discussions was that special legal counsel should be 
retained to assist in the formation of the agency and that costs for the legal counsel be shared 
on an equal basis between the current five agencies (Ventura River Water District, Meiners 
Oaks Water District, City of Ventura, Casitas Municipal Water District, and County of Ventura).  
The attached Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) has been reviewed by each of the 
representatives and their respective legal counsel.  The MOU provides for a equitable sharing of 
the costs associated with the formation of the agency, which is estimated to be $50,000.  The 
contract for legal counsel will be administered through the Ventura River Water District.  
 
If you have any question in this regard, please ask me. 



MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING 
 

FUNDING AND RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE FORMATION OF A GROUNDWATER 
SUSTAINABILITY AGENCY OVER THE UPPER VENTURA RIVER SUB-BASIN 

 
  

This Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) is between Ventura River Water District (VRWD), 
Meiners Oaks Water District (MOWD), Casitas Municipal Water District (Casitas), Ventura 
County Watershed Protection District (County) and City of Ventura (Ventura), hereinafter jointly 
called: “Agencies”. 
 
 

I. PURPOSE & SCOPE 
 
The purpose of this MOU is to clearly identify the roles and responsibilities of each party 
as they relate to the activities and expenses associated with the formation of a 
Groundwater Sustainability Agency over the Upper Ventura River Sub-Basin.   

 
 

II. BACKGROUND 
 

The Sustainable Groundwater Management Act of 2014 authorizes local agencies within 
a groundwater basin to form a Groundwater Sustainability Agency.  The parties to this 
MOU have expressed interest in joining together to form a Groundwater Sustainability 
Agency for the Upper Ventura River Sub-Basin.  For the purposes of this MOU each 
agency shall designate one voting representative. 

 
 
III. ANTICIPATED ACTIVITIES 

 
• Planning meetings 
• Selection of Legal Counsel to assist with the formation of a GSA 
• Preparation of draft By-Laws and/or Ordinances 
• Development of a list of parties interested in the Groundwater Sustainability Plan 
• Publication of Legal notices 
• Conduct stakeholder meetings 
• Conducting public meetings 
• Send correspondence representing the group consensus to DWR and others as 

appropriate 
 
 

IV. ANTICIPATED EXPENSES 
 

• Legal Counsel contract 
• Publication of Notices 
• Technical Experts 

 
 
 
 

Page 1 of 3 
 



V. REIMBURSABLE EXPENSES 
 

Reimbursable expenses are outside costs and exclude miscellaneous expenses and in-
house staff costs for each agency.  To be reimbursable an expense shall be 
preapproved as described is section VI. 
 

VI. APPROVAL OF EXPENDITURES 
 

a. Reimbursable expenses less than $10,000 shall be pre-approved by majority vote of a 
committee made up of a maximum of one representative of each of the Agencies.  The 
maximum amount of cumulative expenses shall be $50,000 prior to approval by the 
agencies. 

 
b. The scope of work and expenses larger than $10,000 shall have unanimous approval by 

the governing bodies of the Agencies prior to expenditure of funds. 
 
 
VII. SHARING OF EXPENSES 

 
a. Each party signatory to this MOU shall pay an equal percentage of the costs 

incurred in accordance with this MOU.  It is anticipated that when an agency is 
formed there will be a more complex cost sharing formula.  

b. The Ventura River Water District shall enter into contracts on behalf of the 
participants of this MOU after approvals per Section VI.  The Ventura River 
Water District shall be the single point of contact with authority to request 
supplemental effort from a consultant or attorney.   

c. Funds owed shall be due and payable 30-days after invoice date.  

d. If an additional party elects to participate in this MOU they shall pay their fair 
share of prior and future expenses.  

 
 
 
VIII. IT IS MUTUALLY UNDERSTOOD AND AGREED BY AND BETWEEN THE PARTIES 

THAT: 
 

This MOU may only be amended in writing, by mutual consent signed by all parties. 
 
 

IX. Term of the MOU 
 

a. This MOU shall be effective after approval by the five agencies and shall remain 
in effect until a Groundwater Sustainability Agency is formed or June 30, 2017 
whichever is earlier. 

 
b. Any agency may opt out to this MOU for any reason upon written request to the 

other agencies provided expenses for which that agency is obligated to pay as of 
the date of request to opt out are paid. 

Page 2 of 3 
 



 
X. EFFECTIVE DATE AND SIGNATURE 

 
This MOU shall be effective upon the signature of all the Agencies authorized officials. 
 
 
Ventura River Water District 
    

By:       
  President of the Board of Directors 

   
Date:       

 
 By:      
          General Manager 

 Date:      
  

 

Meiners Oaks Water District 

 
By:               

President of the Board of Directors 
 
 Date:      
   

By:       
 General Manager 

 
 Date:       
 
 
 
  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Casitas Municipal Water District         
 
 
By:      
 President of the Board of Directors 

Date:       

By:                
General Manager 

Date:       
 
 
 
 
City of Ventura   
 
 
By:       
 
 
Date:       
  
By:       
  
 
Date:       
 
County of Ventura   
 
 
By:       
 
Date:       
 
 
By:       
 
Date:       
 
 
 

Page 3 of 3 
 









CASITAS MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT 
 
 
 

RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE CASITAS MUNICIPAL 
WATER DISTRICT CONCURRING IN NOMINATION TO THE EXECUTIVE 

COMMITTEE OF THE ASSOCIATION OF CALIFORNIA WATER AGENCIES JOINT 
POWERS INSURANCE AUTHORITY (ACWA/JPIA)  

E.G. “JERRY” GLADBACH 
 

 WHEREAS, this district is a member district of the ACWA/JPIA; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the By-laws of the ACWA/JPIA provide that in order for a nomination 
to be made to ACWA/JPIA’s Executive Committee, three member district musts concur 
with the nominating district; and 
 
 WHEREAS, another ACWA/JPIA member district, the Castaic Lake Water 
Agency has requested that this district concur in it nomination of its member of the 
ACWA/JPIA Board of Director4s to the Executive Committee of the ACWA/JPIA. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Directors of the Casitas 
Municipal Water District that it concurs with Castaic Lake Water Agency’s nomination of 
E.G. “Jerry” Gladbach to the Executive Committee of ACWA/JPIA. 
 
 BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the District Clerk is hereby directed to transmit 
a certified copy of this resolution to the ACWA/JPIA at P.O. Box 619082, Roseville, CA 
95661-9082, forthwith.  
 
 Passed and adopted as a regular meeting of the Board of Directors of the 
Casitas Municipal Water District held March 11, 2015, by the following vote: 
 
 AYES: 
 NOES: 
 ABSENT: 
 ABSTAIN: 
 
        ____________________ 
        Mary Bergen, President 
        Casitas Municipal Water District 
ATTEST: 
 
________________________ 
Russ Baggerly, Secretary 
Casitas Municipal Water District 



CASITAS MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT 
 

MINUTES 
Water Resources Committee 

 
DATE:   March 6, 2015 
TO:        Board of Directors 
FROM:   General Manager, Steve Wickstrum 
Re:   Water Resources Committee Meeting of February 23, 2015 
           
RECOMMENDATION: 
 
It is recommended that the Board of Directors receive and file this report. 
 
BACKGROUND AND OVERVIEW: 

    
1. Roll Call.    

Director Bill Hicks and Director Russ Baggerly  
 General Manager, Steve Wickstrum  
  

2. Public comments.  None. 
 

3. Board Comments.  None 
 
4. Manager Comments.  None 
 
5. Update on Water Shortage Contingency Plan. 

The General Manager informed the Committee that a status report on the water supply and demand 
conditions is being prepared and will be presented to the Board. Staff are continuing to develop billing 
concepts to be implemented in the billing system programming. The Plan will be under review during the 
Water Rate Study to be performed by Raftelis Consultants.  
 

6. Discussion on new statewide NPDES permit for drinking water discharge. 
Committee discussed the applicability of the new NPDES permit requirements for drinking water 
discharges and measures that are to be taken to comply with the permit’s best management practices. 
A key constituent in the permit is the total residual chlorine in discharged waters.  Staff are aware of the 
permit application and additional information being presented by the State on this action.  There is a 
need for additional staff training on the implementation of best management practices in our daily work. 
  

 1 



CASITAS MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT 
Minutes 

 
 
DATE:  March 6, 2015 
TO:         Board of Directors 
FROM:  General Manager, Steve Wickstrum 
 
Re:  Executive Committee Meeting of March 6, 2015 
          
RECOMMENDATION: 
It is recommended that the Board of Directors receive and file this report. 
 
MEETING:    

 
1. Roll Call.      Directors Mary Bergen and Peter Kaiser 
   Steve Wickstrum, General Manager   
   Ron Merckling, Public Affairs/Resource Manager 
 
2. Public Comments.  None. 
 
3. Board/Manager comments.    

The General Manager reported on the following: 
a) Park Services Manager Carol Belser has been informed by DFW representative 

that trout planting at Lake Casitas may return in the next few months.  Staff are 
investigating quagga presence/absence at the trout source.  The information 
about the planting is in an initial stage, and more will be provided to the Board 
and public as it is developed.  A similar news article was posted in Santa Barbara 
for Lake Cachuma. 

 
b) Staff have received a request for an access agreement from the Pacific States 

Marine Fisheries Commission to perform fisheries surveys in the Ventura River, 
on USBR property.  Staff fully supports the cooperative sharing of information that 
is gathered and supports the efforts of the Commission.  Before moving forward, 
additional reviews and concurrence with USBR and legal counsel will be made by 
staff. 

 
The committee reviewed new articles concerning desalination in Santa Barbara and local 
concerns about water supply planning.  Director Bergen asked that outreach be 
strengthened as we enter the water rate study and fourth year of drought. 

    
Director Kaiser asked about the status on the hiring of the safety officer.  Ron Merckling 
informed the committee that the hiring process is proceeding. 

 
4. Discussion regarding State Water. 

The General Manager provided a briefing on the current request to be involved in the 
Multi-year Pool.  The discussion will be presented to the Board of Directors. 
  

5. ACWA Executive Committee nominations. 
The Committee reviewed the nomination of Mr. Jerry Gladbach to an ACWA/JPIA 
Executive Committee.  The Committee directed this item to the Board of Directors for the 
consideration of a resolution supporting Mr. Gladbach’s nomination.  
 
 



6. Discussion regarding Board related budget item.  
This discussion provided the committee members the opportunity to suggest Board’s 
budget items that may be considered in the development of the FY 20115-16 Budget.  
Director Kaiser suggested improvements to the audio/visual in the Board room, table 
changes may be considered, and consideration of errors and omissions and identity theft 
coverage. 













Consumption Report

Water Sales FY 2014-2015 (Acre-Feet)         Month to Date

2014 / 2015 2013 / 2014

Classification Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Total Total

AD Ag-Domestic 391 706 398 712 355 368 59 109 3098 3896

AG Ag 341 518 432 550 374 234 67 83 2599 3029

C Commercial 91 99 93 79 43 29 9 11 454 538

DI Interdepartmental 18 3 22 4 10 37 6 4 104 99

F fire 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1

I Industrial 1 6 1 3 2 3 2 2 20 15

OT Other 27 34 24 24 16 10 3 6 144 204

R Residential 212 132 224 116 180 86 99 51 1100 1297

RS - P Resale Pumped 68 174 157 178 104 97 29 15 822 1015

RS - G Resale Gravity 548 608 615 647 419 322 158 202 3519 4451

TE Temporary 2 8 6 11 3 1 0 38 69 48

Total 1699 2288 1972 2,324 1506 1187 432 521 0 0 0 0 11,929 14,593

Total 2013/2014 2014 1910 2301 2122 1951 1437 1145 1713 1022 765 1003 1710 N/A 19093



Casitas Municipal Water District

CFD No. 2013-1 (Ojai) - Monthly Cost Analysis 

2014/2015

03/03/2015

Services Legal Labor Other Total

& Suplies Fees Expense Services Expenses

2011 / 2012 -289.50 42,560.00 11,098.37 0.00 53,368.87

2012 / 2013 831.82 223,462.77 14,836.68 0.00 239,131.27

2013 / 2014 29.89 91,878.06 3,835.65 0.00 95,743.60

July 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

August 0.00 840.00 0.00 0.00 840.00

September 0.00 96.00 0.00 0.00 96.00

October 0.00 22,258.61 0.00 0.00 22,258.61

November 0.00 696.00 0.00 0.00 696.00

December 0.00 2,134.00 0.00 0.00 2,134.00

January 0.00 510.00 0.00 0.00 510.00

Feburary 0.00 72.00 0.00 0.00 72.00

March 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

April 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

May 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

June 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Total Cost YTD 0.00 26,606.61 0.00 0.00 26,606.61

Total Project Cost 572.21 384,507.44 29,770.70 0.00 414,850.35

Prepared by dcollin 03/03/2015 Page 1



   CASITAS MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT

TREASURER'S MONTHLY REPORT OF INVESTMENTS

03/03/15

 

Type of Date of Adjusted Current Rate of Date of % of Days to

Invest Institution CUSIP Maturity Cost Mkt Value Interest Deposit Portfolio Maturity

*TB Federal Home Loan Bank 313379EE5 06/14/2019 $1,378,115 $1,352,039 1.625% 10/03/2012 8.33% 1541

*TB Federal Home Loan Bank 313379RN1 12/27/2024 $978,364 $995,289 2.840% 06/18/2014 6.13% 3534

*TB Federal Home Loan Bank 3133802D8 11/23/2022 $1,477,575 $1,485,371 2.400% 11/19/2014 9.15% 2780

*TB Federal Home Loan Bank 31338OA98 08/14/2024 $126,966 $127,739 2.500% 07/03/2014 0.79% 3401

*TB Federal Home Loan Bank 31338OS73 10/11/2022 $699,720 $694,575 2.430% 08/11/2014 4.28% 2738

*TB Federal Home Loan Bank 313381ST3 01/17/2023 $250,346 $249,913 1.500% 09/08/2014 1.54% 2834

*TB Federal Home Loan Bank 313381TA3 01/17/2023 $277,619 $276,969 2.240% 09/08/2014 1.71% 2834

*TB Federal Farm CR Bank 3133EAZM3 07/24/2023 $1,658,682 $1,685,304 2.380% 09/16/2014 10.38% 3021

*TB Federal Home Loan Bank 3133XFKF2 06/11/2021 $698,682 $678,978 5.625% 01/16/2013 4.18% 2258

*TB Federal Home Loan Bank 3133XWNB10 06/12/2015 $701,701 $705,306 2.875% 07/01/2010 4.34% 99

*TB Federal Home Loan Bank 3133XWNB10 06/12/2015 $714,016 $722,365 4.750% 07/01/2010 4.45% 99

*TB Federal Home Loan Bank 3134G34R8 07/23/2021 $513,842 $509,969 2.000% 12/02/2014 3.14% 2300

*TB Federal Home Loan MTG Corp 3134G43A4 10/30/2024 $849,441 $857,600 2.500% 07/03/2014 5.28% 3477

*TB Federal Home Loan MTG Corp 3135G0ES80 11/15/2016 $688,055 $691,940 1.375% 03/12/2012 4.26% 612

*TB Federal National Assn 3136G0K67 04/09/2021 $192,000 $190,971 2.000% 12/02/2014 1.18% 2196

*TB Federal Home Loan MTG Corp 3137EABA60 11/17/2017 $1,099,251 $1,107,410 5.125% 01/03/2012 6.82% 974

*TB Federal Home Loan MTG Corp 3137EADB2 01/13/2022 $681,802 $680,660 2.375% 09/08/2014 4.19% 2470

*TB US Treasury Inflation Index NTS 912828JE10 07/15/2018 $1,136,100 $1,161,468 1.375% 07/06/2010 7.15% 1212

*TB US Treasury Notes 912828LZ10 01/15/2020 $1,121,013 $1,166,270 2.125% 07/01/2010 7.18% 1752

*TB US Treasury Bond 912828WE6 11/15/2023 $769,496 $809,768 2.750% 12/13/2013 4.99% 3132

Accrued Interest $87,233

Total in Gov't Sec. (11-00-1055-00&1065) $16,012,785 $16,237,135 88.16%

Total Certificates of Deposit: (11.13506) $0 $0 0.00%

** LAIF as of:  (11-00-1050-00) N/A $446 $446 0.25% Estimated 0.00%

*** COVI as of: (11-00-1060-00) N/A $2,181,158 $2,181,158 0.25% Estimated 11.84%

TOTAL FUNDS INVESTED $18,194,390 $18,418,740 100.00%

Total Funds Invested last report $18,203,507 $18,386,246

Total Funds Invested 1 Yr. Ago $18,160,104 $18,362,253

**** CASH IN BANK (11-00-1000-00) EST. $5,686,950 $5,686,950

CASH IN Western Asset Money Market $1,655 $1,655 0.01%

TOTAL CASH & INVESTMENTS $23,882,994 $24,107,344

TOTAL CASH & INVESTMENTS 1 YR AGO $21,537,881 $21,740,030

*CD CD - Certificate of Deposit

*TB TB - Federal Treasury Bonds or Bills 

** Local Agency Investment Fund 

*** County of Ventura Investment Fund

Estimated interest rate, actual not due at present time.

**** Cash in bank

No investments were made pursuant to subdivision (i) of Section 53601, Section 53601.1 

and subdivision (i) Section 53635 of the Government Code.

All investments were made in accordance with the Treasurer's annual statement of 

investment policy.


	03-11-15 Agenda1
	02-25-15 Min
	Minutes of the Casitas Municipal Water District
	Board Meeting Held
	February 25, 2015

	bills
	memo dir comp
	Ordinance 15-01
	3m memo award-with attorney's comments
	Reso 3M
	memo MOU Groundwater Mgt Agency Memo 03 06 2015
	memo MOU Groundwater Mgt Agency Memo 03 06 2015
	ACWAJPIA nomination info
	Reso J Gladback to ACWAJPIA
	Water Res Minutes 2 23 2015
	UCASITAS MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT
	UMINUTES
	FROM:   General Manager, Steve Wickstrum
	URECOMMENDATION:
	It is recommended that the Board of Directors receive and file this report.
	UBACKGROUND AND OVERVIEW:

	Executive Minutes  02 06 2015
	CSDA Call for Nominations
	Consumption 2014 - 2015
	CFD No. 2013-1 (Ojai) Monthly Costs 2014-2015
	Investment Report 03-03-2015
	MOU - GSA FORMATION FUNDING Final 3-6-15.pdf
	By:
	President of the Board of Directors
	Date:
	By:                General Manager
	Date:
	Meiners Oaks Water District
	By:               President of the Board of Directors
	Date:
	By:        General Manager
	Date:
	Casitas Municipal Water District
	By:
	President of the Board of Directors
	Date:
	By:                General Manager
	Date:
	City of Ventura


